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State Agency on Intellectual Protection
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Association for Copyright and Related Rights
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Intellectual Property
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Intellectual Property Rights
Non-Governmental Organization
Observatory on Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights
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Republic of Moldova
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Introduction
The main aim of the analysis is documenting and providing information about the key stakeholders in IP field and target audiences at whom the Cultural Change Programme is aimed and
development needs and communication tools strategic objectives. Also, the added value offered
by this document is to come up with a strategic view of the institutional landscape and the
interactions between the different stakeholders and the issues they can jointly address in order
to enhance and promote enforcement of IP rights in Moldova. The findings of the analysis are
envisaged for the integration into the corresponding deliverables – the Programme of Cultural
Change and Action Plan.
The analysis includes identifying, for different groups of stakeholders dealing with IPR in the
form of matrix for each group of stakeholders:
 gaps of knowledge, resources, mechanisms for effective use, protection and commercialization of intellectual property objects;
 development needs: improvement of knowledge and qualification, seminars, training,
needs in working out of recommendations, specific actions etc. that the Programme
needs to target;
 communication tools strategy for group of stakeholders.
For carrying out this analysis it was used the different ways of investigation:
 The desk research is the main source of information which includes analyses of policy
documents, national strategies and plans on IPR, AGEPI's annual reports, the web sites
of the specialized institutions (see annex 1) etc.;
 Interviews with focus-groups actors;
 Questionnaires when providing interviews.
1. Government institutions involved in IPR protection and enforcement
1.1 General characteristics
The intellectual property legal system in Moldova was established and demanded an institutional framework necessary for the protection, enforcement and defence of IP rights. Governmental institutions charged with functions and responsibilities to protect and enforce the IP
rights and develop an efficient infrastructure to prevent and combat the counterfeiting and piracy phenomena are: State Agency on Intellectual Property (AGEPI), Ministry of Internal Affairs and Police Department, Ministry of Finance and Customs Service, Ministry of Justice and
Agency for Court Administration, General Prosecutors Office, Agency for Consumer Protection.
Additionally, was created the National Commission on Intellectual Property (NCIP) an advisory body under the Government, established to coordinate and ensure the joint efforts among
ministries, other central administrative authorities and holders of IP rights in activities aimed at
developing and strengthening the National Intellectual Property System.
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By Government Decision2 several public institutions have been designated as the competent
authorities vested with powers and responsibilities relating to geographical indications and to
traditional specialties guaranteed, according to the covered fields. Among the competent authorities we can enumerate: Ministry of Economy, Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry,
Ministry of Regional Development and Constructions, Ministry of Culture, Ministry of Environment and Ministry of Health.
1.2 IPR support provided
During 2016, 41 experts from AGEPI participated in 9 advanced professional courses distance
trainings organized by the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO) Academy. To enhance the knowledge of public servants in the IP sector, AGEPI organized 2 training for the
Ministry of Health’s employees (12 persons were trained) on WIPO recommendations and EU
member states best practices, how to register and promote GI. Also, were conducted trainings
at the local level for the local public administration and the representatives of the cultural institutions.3
The representatives of the State Commission for Variety Testing of the Republic of Moldova
and employees of the National Food Safety Agency of Moldova participated in training seminars and round table on theoretical and practical aspects on the legal protection of plant varieties
organized by AGEPI and the Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry.
In the field of enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights were organized several workshops,
round tables and trainings of trainers from public institutions with responsibilities in the field
such as: Ministry of Home Affairs, Customs Service, General Police Inspectorate, Prosecutor
General’s Office, Consumer Protection Agency, National Institute of Justice and Competition
Council. The key topics were focused on the procedures needed to ensure the enforcement of
intellectual property rights, fight against piracy and counterfeiting, storage and destruction of
counterfeit goods etc.
In the line with the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020 objectives, AGEPI organized several training and thematic seminars for public bodies charged with functions and responsibilities for the enforcement of intellectual property rights, including training and autumn
schools for judges, prosecutors, representatives of Chisinau and territorial courts and Anti-Corruption Public Prosecutor’s Office, Public Prosecutor’s Office of ATU Gagauzia, Public Prosecutor’s Offices of Chisinau, Causeni, Briceni, Anenii Noi districts, etc.
During November 2016, was carried out the benchmarking of Moldova’s practices in the field
of IP with the practical guidelines of the European Commission Directorate-General for Taxation and Customs Union Blueprints. As a result, were formulated the objectives and the performance indicators to be reached in 2017.
1.3 Main gaps
2

Government Decision on Designation of Competent Authorities Vested with Powers & Responsibilities Relating to Products with Designation of Origin & Geographical Indications & Traditional Specialties Guaranteed &
the Competent Authorities Responsible for Official Controls on the Conformity of These Products, No. 644 of
July 19, 2010.
3 Monitoring report on the implementation of the Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation of the National
Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020, approved by the minister of Economy, Chairman of the National Commission on Intellectual Property, Octavian Calmic, May 2, 2017.
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The main barriers to ensure an adequate coordination of the ministries responsible for the IPR
enforcement and protection in Moldova4 refer to:
 Weak institutional capacities of bodies charged with powers and responsibilities concerning the protection and enforcement of IP rights;
 Low level of stuff knowledge and skills in IPR enforcement;
 Lack of activities in the IP field generated and implemented by the ministries;
 Insufficient communication between institutions with responsibilities in IP sector;
 Lack of effective mechanisms to stimulate joint actions of the ministries;
 The discrepancy between the institutions which are involved in the National IP System,
they are very different both in terms of their functions and duties in the IP area, as well
as in terms of their functional capacities.
Enforcement measure in the IP sector are executed generally by Police Department, Customs
Service, General Prosecutors Office, Agency for Consumer Protection and others. The main
gaps related to the IPR enforcement 5are:
 Lack of a common database AGEPI-Ministry of Internal Affairs-Customs Service in the
field of intellectual property;
 Lack of consolidated measures and an effective infrastructure to prevent and combat the
piracy and counterfeiting;
 Lack of conjugated anti-piracy activities.
In terms of Geographical Indications the main gaps refer to following issues6:
 The lack of regulations on implementing of Government Decision No. 644 of July 19,
2010 on appointing competent authorities in GI sphere for sectors others than vine;
 Lack of transparent, fast, effective system of registering GI and use of GI regarding the
activity of ministries with GI competence. Lack of appropriate certification body for GI
products stops the use of GI system in Moldova for non vine product.
 Lack of the mechanism on effective use of customs IPR control for the EU geographical
indications in connection with the absence of a party to be contacted in case of suspicion
of violation of the GI, DO, NSG registered in the EU;
 Insufficient experience and practice among customs officers on how to operate with
possible counterfeiting production with GI designations;
 Insufficient level of promotion and marketing of traditional products in Moldova and
perspective GI products.
1.4 Development needs
During the interviews many public institutions mentioned following necessary support to enhance the protection of IPR in Moldova, divided by the area of intervention:
IPR protection and promotion
 Strengthening institutional capacities of the bodies charged with powers and responsibilities on the IPR the protection and enforcement;
4

Government Decision No. 491 of 08.11.2015 on approval of the Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation
of the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020.
5
Idem
6
Gap Analysis "Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) protection and enforcement in Moldova", EU Project “Support to Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights”, January 2017.
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Strengthen the exchange of information with international IPR bodies for identifying
best forms of cooperation in the area of IPR enforcement;
Enhance the Observatory capacities to develop an information system for data sharing
between authorities;
Training seminar for the employees of mentioned above bodies;
Conduct an IPR benchmarking exercise on the Moldova’s IPR system efficiency and
effectiveness;
Creation of dedicated pages on IP rights on the web sites of the institutions charged with
functions and responsibilities to protect and enforce the IP rights;
Development an efficient infrastructure to prevent and combat the counterfeiting and
piracy phenomena.
Extend the high level discussions on IP problematic, including GI issues through the
Economic Council of the Prime Minister (the current platform of discussions represent
the National Commission on Intellectual Property)

Enforcement
 Training for the representatives of the public authorities responsible for the enforcement
of intellectual property rights;
 Develop an IT Communication Platform to enhance the IPR enforcement among enforcement agencies with the aims of improvement of collection, processing, dissemination and exchange data on the enforcement of PR, including IP Observatory;
 in this respect, will be needed: training of trainers of the institutions using the system, inter institutions and seminars for presenting the possibilities of the IT system
to wide audience of officials;7
 training for the personnel (technical and IT) of each specific institution using the
system
 Support training on how to improve the interaction of enforcement bodies with rights
holders in order to prevent and combat counterfeiting and piracy;
 Facilitate data and information exchange among law enforcement agencies;
 The implementation of the antipiracy system to exchange information among rightholders, enforcement bodies and AGEPI;
 Development of an effective infrastructure and efficient mechanisms for the authorities
to prevent and fight against counterfeiting and piracy;
 Tailored campaigns to raise awareness among rights holders to prevent and combat
counterfeiting and piracy;
 Improve and develop for customs authorities information system facilitating the on-line
exchange of information between authorities involved in the border control of goods
(for example in EU there is Anti-Counterfeit and anti-Piracy Information System, called
COPIS);
 Development and creation of a computerised customs management system similar to
ASYCUDA which will be used by Customs Service. This platform can generate trade
data that can be used for statistical economic analysis;
GI protection
 Measures for GI protection are described in special Project document on Analysis of GI
system in Moldova.
7

Project proposal, Support to Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights, Project No.
EropeAid/137467/DH/SER/MD
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1.5 Communication tools
One of the objectives of the Support to Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights Project is
to improve the communication and co-ordination of agencies (AGEPI, Ministry of Internal Affairs and Police Department, Ministry of Finance and Customs Service, Ministry of Justice and
Agency for Court Administration, General Prosecutors Office, Agency for Consumer Protection etc.) involved in the process of the Intellectual Property Rights enforcement and protection.
To achieve this objective are necessary following set of communication tools:
 IT Communication Platform which will improve enforcement of IPR in Moldova by
ensuring the exchange of information and data between the institutions involved in the
enforcement of IP Rights in Moldova;
 Create a network of communication specialists who work in the agencies with competence in IP protection and enforcement and training them regularly on the key issues in
the field of IP;
 Working meeting with relevant ministries/ decision makers to formulate a common
agenda of awareness events and key messages on IPR protection and enforcement;
 Practical trainings for the enforcement agents on using AGEPI’s intellectual property
databases to identify possible infringements, warehousing of the suspected goods etc.8;
 Improve the design and update the content of existing communications tools: IP Observer, Official Bulletin of Intellectual Property, www.agepi.gov.md, www.stoppirateria.md, www.customs.gov.md, AGEPI Annual Reports, books and pamphlets, periodicals, official bulletins, national documents (on different issues on IP protection and
enforcement) and enhancing their dissemination via dedicated IPR pages on the enforcement agencies and GI competent agencies web sites.



2. Courts, judges dealing with IP cases

2.1 General Characteristics
To ensure en effective protection of the IP rights in Moldova, judiciary should have in-depth
knowledge of IP. Judges dealing with IP cases have an important role in interpreting national
laws and regulations if any conflicts arise. Regarding civil cases, the Chisinau Court of Appeal
is the court of first instance in the cases of IPR and the Supreme Court of Justice is the appeal
court. In criminal and administrative matters, the court of first instance is the District Court,
with the right to appeal to the Court of Appeal and from there to the Supreme Court. In criminal
matters there is a subsequent right of appeal from the Supreme Court's decision at the Supreme
Court Plenum.
According to the AGEPI annual report, during 2016, were 328 hearings on IPO-related cases
(with 55 hearings more than the previous year), of which: 120 – in the Chisinau Court of Appeal, and 208 – in district courts. In most cases (96%), objects of disputes were trademarks.
2.2 IPR support provided

8
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In 2016, the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO), in cooperation with AGEPI,
National Institute of Justice (NIJ) and European Patent Office (EPO) organized a seminar on
respecting Intellectual Property for the representatives of the judiciary system, including representatives of Chisinau courts, as well as courts from regions, representatives of the Supreme
Court of Justice, Chisinau Court of Appeal, National Institute of Justice (NIJ).9
In 2013, AGEPI and NIJ signed a memorandum of cooperation with the scope to promote information about the national intellectual property protection among employees in the justice
sector of the Republic of Moldova by organizing information and training events for judges,
including inviting experts and specialists from abroad. In this context, on March 15, 2017, 45
candidates for the position of judges and prosecutors from the National Institute of Justice (NIJ)
visited the State Agency on Intellectual Property (AGEPI) with the aim of familiarization with
the national system on protection and enforcement of intellectual property rights in the Republic
of Moldova.10
2.3 Main gaps
 Insufficient understanding of IP among the judges dealing with IP cases;
 Lack of familiarity with the practice of the EU Court of Justice and EU Member-States
courts in implementing EU acts in IP domain in connection with importance of effective
application of national IP legislation reformed according to EU standards in the framework of Moldova – EU Partnership and Cooperation Agreement and Moldova – EU
Association Agreement;
 There is a degree of informal specialization in the Intellectual Property Law both in the
Court of Appeal and the Supreme Court, only five judges at the Court of Appeal and
two judges of the Supreme Court have a good experience in the field thanks to trainings
held by AGEPI for judges, prosecutors and customs officers.
2.4 Development needs
 Enhance the competences of judges and prosecutors in the settlement of intellectual
property disputes;
 Familiarising with EU Court of Justice and national EU Member-States courts practices
in intellectual property disputes;
 Exchange of information on Moldova IP court practices;
 Provide trainings on:
 extrajudicial settlement of disputes regarding intellectual property;
 litigations regarding the insurance of action in copyright and related rights;
 AGEPI’s role in the examination of the disputes on intellectual property
 examination of the infringements and offenses related to copyright and related
rights
 providing evidences demonstrating the capitalization of the works in commercial
premises;
 establishing the amount of compensation in violation of copyright and related rights
etc;
 Review on the infringements and offenses related to copyright and related rights.
2.5 Communication tools
9

www.agepi.gov.md
Idem

10
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Trainings and seminars on the enforcement and protection of IP rights in Moldova;
Organize round tables on national legal-normative framework in the field of IP;
Seminars on EU Court of Justice and Member States courts practice in dealing with IP
cases;
Final judgments and decisions of the courts on IP-related disputes published on the
AGEPI official webpage (www.agepi.gov.md/ro/decisions);
Development of the informational package on IP enforcement system (generalization of
practice of consideration of cases for different IP objects in both the EU and Moldova;
experts recommendations and reviews);
Distribute USB flash drive with the info package on both Moldovan and European IP
enforcement systems among the judges;
3. IPR organisations

3.1. Patent Attorney associations
3.1.1 General characteristics
The Association of Patent Attorneys was created in 2007. According to the National Register
of Intellectual Property Attorneys, officially there are about 135 registered patent attorneys,
who represent the interests of natural persons and legal entities before the AGEPI, including in
the dispute settlement procedure. Their total number at the end of the year amounted to 135, of
which 116 are active, 15 attorneys have suspended their activity, and four attorneys have ceased
their activity. Only few of them are members of the Association of Patent Attorneys. It denotes
the absence in Moldova of strong organisation of Patent Attorneys which represents their rights.
3.1.2 IPR support provided
Each year, AGEPI organizes quarterly meetings with Patent Attorneys where they discuss and
inform Patent Attorneys about new updates on the legislation, the procedure for re-examination
and appeal of decisions for trademarks, online submission of IPO applications, including online
payment of fees etc.
In the context of actions dedicated to the World Intellectual Property Day, celebrated annually
on 26 April, last year and this year as well, AGEPI organized the Scientific-Practical Symposium “AGEPI Readings”, event gathered together about 100 participants, including patent attorneys. Also, in line with the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020 objectives,
AGEPI organized several training and thematic seminars for patent attorneys, most of them
have approached topics like: legislative provisions, the latest national and international trends
in the field of IP, useful information on adjusting the national IP objects and trademarks to the
international practice11.
On 16 October 2013 was signed an agreement between the Government of the Republic of
Moldova and the European Patent Organization (EPO) on Validation of European Patents. The
Validation Agreement offers the possibility for Moldovan Patent Attorney to benefit from the

11

www.agepi.gov.md
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necessary legal and technical assistance for the implementation of the system of validation and
consolidation of the national system of protection of inventions.12
3.1.3






Main gaps
Lack of the Code of Practice for the Patent Attorneys;
An insufficiency of the Patent Attorneys’ communication and interaction between them;
Lack of interest among Patent Attorneys to be organized in associations;
Difficulties in representation in courts by patent attorneys of the parties’ interests;
According to some patent attorney suggestions – the need in unified practice on trademarks registration; guidelines for examination of applications for trademarks; more
knowledge in conducting license agreements.

3.1.4 Development needs
 Strengthen Patent Attorneys representativeness and increase the number of Patent attorney association number;
 Working out of Code of Practice for Patent attorneys;
 Workshops for IP attorney on the best EU practice on activity and organisation of patents attorneys in the EU member-states, EPO patent attorneys;
 Involvement of Patent attorneys in the seminars, organised by AGEPI, Project.
3.1.5 Communication tools
 Training and seminars on EU member states experience on Patent Attorneys activity;
studies case and success stories on activity of Patent Attorneys Associations from EU
member states;
 Trainings and information sessions on how to access both national and international
data bases and information tools, including forms, fee calculator etc.
 Practical seminar to enhance the knowledge and practice in filing of IP objects online
applications by using AGEPI electronic service – e-AGEPI;
 Informal meetings to improve Patent Attorneys interactions between them and set a feasible communication platform;
3.2 IPR Associations
3.2.1 General characteristics
It is an absence of strong IPR associations other than collective management organisations in
Moldova. Some of the organisations are on the initial stage of development. The activity of
associations in Moldova is under Law on Public Associations (1996), Law on Foundations
(1999), and Law on Philanthropy and Sponsorship (1995) etc.
3.2.2 IPR support provided
The representatives of different organisations working with IP were invited to various events
organised by AGEPI: trainings, seminars on management of Collective Management Organisations etc.
3.2.3 Main gaps
12

http://www.epo.org/law-practice/legal-texts/official-journal/2016/08/a67.html
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Insufficient development of public and other organizations in the field of intellectual
property;
Absence of organizations that represent owners of industrial property objects;
Absence of regional organizations representing international associations in the field
of intellectual property, such as the International Association for the Protection of Intellectual Property (AIPPI) and others;
Absence of national nongovernmental organizations which promote the enforcement of
intellectual property;

3.2.4 Development needs
 Sharing experience on activity of associations in the field of copyright and related
Rights, industrial property in the EU Member States.
Consultancy and support in creation and developing associations in IP sphere in Moldova.
3.2.5 Communication tools
 Dedicated page on the AGEPI website on IPR Associations activity;
 Seminars on experience of EU member-states IP associations activity;
 Involvement of representatives of organisations and persons who intend to create corresponding organisations in trainings on IPR protections and enforcement;
 Round tables with representatives of the associations on topical questions of IP protection and enforcement.
3.3 Collective Management Organisations of Copyright and Related Rights
3.3.1 General characteristics
At present the collective management of copyright and related rights can be exercised by the
National Association “Copyright”(ANCO) and Republican Copyright Office (ORDA)13.

The activity of Collective Management Organisations of Copyright and Related Rights is regulated by the Law on Copyright and Related Rights14.
In order to strengthen the system of collective management of copyright and related rights in
the Republic of Moldova, AGEPI proceeded in 2016 to the review of the law on Copyright and
Related Rights15, aimed at reforming the activity of the collective management organizations
(CMOs) in line with EU regulations in the field16.
3.1.2 IPR support provided
AGEPI carried out general and special reviews on the CMOs’ activity.

13

Decisions no. 3/1566 of 20.09.2013, nr.10 / 3269 of 29.12.2015.
Law no. 139, adopted on 02. 07. 2010.
15
Idem.
16
Directive 2014/26/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 02.26.2014 on collective management
of copyright and related rights and multi-territorial licensing of rights in musical works for online use in the internal
market.
14
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Until 2016 there were 5 collective management organizations in Moldova. They had court cases
one against the other. Also representatives of different organizations could come to one user on
payment of remuneration, which led to discontent among users.
In 2016, the activities of CMO have been checked by AGEPI. In 2016 were realised 5 reviews
of the activity of 5 CMO’s.17 Three of CMOs in connection with violations in gathering and
distribution of remuneration were denied the right to collect rewards, including one of the large
organization ASDAC. Currently, two collective management organizations operate in Moldova: Oficiul Republican al Dreptului de Autor (ORDA) and Asociaţia Naţională „Copyright”
(ANCO). “Copyright” represents producers of phonograms and some foreign organisations,
including Russian right holders. They formed a single structure - a Private organization «Centrul de Licenţiere şi Administrare a Drepturilor» (CLAD) to collect remuneration, which concludes contracts with users on behalf of these two organizations.
Also, members of CMOs took part in different activities organised by AGEPI, including seminar on Collective Management of Performers’ Rights in the European Union and the Republic
of Moldova in 2016. Also the working visit of the external evaluators from the World Intellectual Property Organization was organised.
3.1.3 Main gaps
 Lack of experience, absence of modern organizational mechanism on CMOs work comparing to the CMOs in EU Member States;
 Lack of standards of activity according to the Directive 2014/26/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 02.26.2014 on collective management of copyright
and related rights and multi-territorial licensing of rights in musical works for online
use in the internal market.
 Lack of implementing of Directive 2014/26/EU to Moldova legislation (the draft law is
under consideration);
 The difficulties of efficient administration of the use of IP objects by CMOs;
 Need in more active interactions and joint activities of CMOs with AGEPI and other
Governmental bodies;
 Existence of the organizations, including government sector, which do not pay fees for
the use of copyright and related rights objects;
 A high management fee is required by CMOs;
 Evasion on performing the distribution and payment of collected royalties;
 Disobedience in respecting the AGEPI and courts decisions18;
 Extremely limited and incomplete information on the activity of enterprises operating
in the so-called music industry;
3.1.4 Development needs

Power Point Presentations “Transparency, accountability and good governance in collective management”, Eugeniu Rusu, AGEPI, March 3, 2017, Regional Workshop on Copyright and Collective Management (2 -3 March,
2017), Kiev, Ukraine.
18
Power Point Presentations “Transparency, accountability and good governance in collective management”, Eugeniu Rusu, AGEPI, March 3, 2017, Regional Workshop on Copyright and Collective Management (2 -3 March,
2017), Kiev, Ukraine.
17
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The need in reforming of activity of CMOs organisations according to requirements of
Directive 2014/26/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 02.26.2014
on collective management of copyright and related rights and multi-territorial licensing of rights in musical works for online use in the internal market.
The need in implementing in Moldova of the provisions of Directive 2014/26/EU.
Support in developing working documents of the CMOs in Moldova including CMOs
action plan development, updating and developing documents of CMO according with
EU standards19;
Organisation of training for CMOs on EU Member States experience on implementation
of Directive 2014/26/EU and modern activity of CMOs in the EU;
Support in determination of rate of charges for users of works and related rights objects;
Support in creating a single form of gathering information on works and phonograms
use by users;
The need in improving, consolidation of the efforts of collective management organizations in Copyrights and Related Rights sphere;
Improve the performance of the CMOs’ assessment;
Feasibility to carry out the study on existing and possible mechanisms to get information
on the use of music and cinematographic objects, literary works by different groups
users.

3.1.5 Communication tools
 Training, seminars on EU practice on collective management of copyright and related
rights;
 Develop guidelines for CMOs on actual topics of activity;
 Improve the forms of information from users, model contracts, distribution of remuneration;
 Trainings, seminars on distribution and payment of collected royalties;
 Publishing of the CMOs activity reports to ensure the CMOs transparency and efficiency;
 Organize tailored media campaigns to promote the copyrights and related rights in musical works for online use among the artists, musicians, performers, painters (interviews
in print media, banners in online media, radio and TV spots);
 Presentation and evaluation of EU practice in the field.


4. Those sectors of the economy (both EU & Moldova) that create intellectual
property of all classes and that need protection of those rights in Moldova

4.1 General characteristics
Nowadays, industries that respect IPR contribute directly and substantively to the economic
growth, development and raising the welfare of the population. The most important copyright
industries and sectors that make the strongest contribution of all types of copyright activities to
the creation of gross value added, gross domestic product and employment are: software and
databases, press and literature and advertising services.20
19

EU Directive on collective rights management and multi-territorial licensing of rights in musical works for
online uses, adopted on 04.02.2014.
20
The Economic Performance of Copyright-Based Industries, Moldova Report, 2015, http://www.wipo.int/export/sites/www/copyright/en/performance/pdf/econ_contribution_cr_md.pdf
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According to the typology of intellectual property, IPO market is divided into two main areas:
industrial property objects and copyright and related rights objects21. In respect with actual IP
market state in Moldova, the most important markets are following:
 Market of industrial property objects (patented inventions, trademarks and brands, industrial designs);
 Market of objects of copyright and related rights including music and cinematographic
creations (audio-video products), literary works and printing industry and software;
 Market of counterfeit and pirated goods;
 Market of services provided by intellectual property market infrastructure.
According to the Moldova Investment and Export Promotion Organization (MIEPO), the most
dynamic sectors of economy are ICT, manufacturing industry, automotive industry, agriculture
and others. If at the begging of 2000, the largest industries in Moldova have been manufacturing
industry, agriculture and food processing, textile, apparel and footwear, nowadays, the ICT
sector is growing fast and many Small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) entering the market.
The SMEs sector represents about 97.6% of the total number of enterprises actives in Moldova22. In 2015 the number of SMEs was 49,8 thousand enterprises, or with 0,5 thousand enterprises (1,0%) less than in 2014. The sector of small and medium sized enterprises represents
about 97,4% from the total number of enterprises, distributed by sector of the economy as follows: trade 39,2%, industry 9,1%, transport 6,7%, constructions 5,6%, agriculture 5,5% real
estate 18,4% etc.
4.2 IPR support provided
During 2015 and 2016 AGEPI provided support for the economic agents in the SME sector,
both on its website and in seminars, roundtables and exhibitions attended, with extensive information about the national intellectual property system, including the Intellectual Property PreDiagnosis23. Also, AGEPI provided different services related to IPRs (retrievals, consultations
on compilation of applications for protection, use of databases in the field).
In the framework of the WIPO Project24 was conducted a series of in-depth interviews with
over 50 institutions, economic agents, nongovernmental organizations, etc. As a result, were
identified the priority objectives of the National Strategy on Intellectual Property until 2020
and specific measures and actions for their achievement.
In Moldova the support of SMEs is carried out regardless of their field of activity and the support of innovation − regardless of the size of business.25 In 2016, the EEN technology transfer
net has been created with participation of the Innovation and Technology Transfer Agency,

21

Idem.
Classification of Activities in the Moldovan Economy- CAEM, 2014.
23
Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation of the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020, approved by Government Decision No. 397 of 16.06.2015.
24
Evaluation Report on the Project on Improvement of National, Sub-Regional and Regional IP Institutional and
User Capacity (2009-2011), available online: http://www.wipo.int/meetings/en/doc_details.jsp?doc_id=219342.
25
National Strategy on Intellectual Property until 2020.
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Trade Chamber, Organization for Small and Medium Enterprises Sector Development
(ODIMM).
4.3 Main gaps
 High level of piracy and counterfeiting, with a major impact on the economic security
and the health of the consumers;
 Poor involvement of the holders of IPO in the IPR protection actions;
 Reduced utilization of IP potential by the small and medium-sized enterprises (SME);
 The absence or small extent of effective financial, tax instruments for developing innovation activity, commercialisation of IP object. In the normative acts of the Republic of
Moldova there are no provisions that would regulate the allocation of qualifier “innovative enterprise” and “innovative product”, there are no established criteria for determining the degree of novelty of the products and technologies;
 In many Moldovan enterprises IP management is put in charge of, usually a lawyer,
whose activity is often reduced to only obtaining protection titles, prolongation of their
validity (renewal), settlement of disputes, practically not being involved in the management of intellectual property;
 The lack of official data on IPO market indicators and its capacity26.
4.4 Development needs
 Training of sectors of economy representatives on “Intellectual Property management”,
“Knowledge management” and “Innovation management”;
 Training on use of IPO value as a contribution to the formation of the stock capital of
the commercial company;
 Organization of a joint training with ODIMM, Chamber of Commerce and Industry of
the Republic of Moldova and SMEs on IP with a focus on trademarks, industrial design
and GI;
 Training on the benefits of the Intellectual Property Objects and Data Security described
in patent applications;
 Seminars on innovation and starts up creation in the field of IP;






Seminars on practical aspects of searching in databases and filling of the patent
application;
Seminars on technology transfer from research organisations and universities to companies;
Support in elaboration of the National Strategy on Creative Industries Development;
Support in improving copyright statistics, conducting annual assessments of the economic contribution of the copyright industries;
Developing the collective management of copyright and related rights etc.

4.5 Communication tools
 Promote enrolment of intellectual property in market relations;
 Ensure online access to information in the IP field, including the Official Bulletin of
Industrial Property (BOPI), databases, as well as showcasing the EU companies experience in the field;
 Involve SMEs in informing their network of customers, partners, and society in general about the role of IP for increasing business competitiveness, economic, social and
26

Idem.
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cultural development of the country by organizing tailored campaign focused on behaviour change;
Support to the producer groups in developing technical specifications and the status of
the producer groups
Training on practical aspects regarding the filling of the patent application and searching in databases;
Other communication tools which can be used in promotion IPR among SMEs and
other industries: involvement of SMEs to exhibitions focused on innovation and SMEs
promotion, contests “Trademark of the Year” and “Quality Achievements Award ”,
Intellectual Property Market Monitoring Mechanism etc;
Creation of web platform on Intellectual Property issues with IP information for enterprises of different sectors of economy;
Publish information, reports, case studies on IPR which may be interesting and useful
for the SMEs activity and development.
5. Civil society organizations

5.1 General characteristics
In the Republic of Moldova are registered about 7000 CSOs. The most important areas of activity are: education / training (50%), social services (40.8%), development (36.9%), followed
by civic and advocacy (26.2%), health and youth (19.25%), culture (16.9%).
Promoting IP rights through Non-governmental organization (NGO) sector will ensure the visibility of IP system. The variety and large number of Civil Society Organisations (CSOs) in
Moldova can be useful in creating a communication platform on promotion of IPR.
Stop Pirateria campaign targeting pupils from schools can be extended to youth via National
Platform of the Eastern Partnership Civil Society Forum “Pentru Europa/ Pro Europe”, National
Youth Council of Moldova (NYCM), National Platform of Libraries “Novateca” etc.
5.2 IPR support provided
In 2017, AGEPI in partnership with the National Youth Council from Moldova will organize
the key event dedicated to all young people from Moldova - the 12nd edition of the Youth
Festival. An event that gather the NGOs members of the National Youth Council from Moldova
network and thousand youth from all over the country, including youth leaders from district
Councils.
5.3 Main gaps
 Lack of involvement and approach of national NGOs in promoting and defending IP in
Moldova in current strategic documents;
 Very limited numbers of organizations advocating for IP rights;
 Low level of establishing relations of cooperation with civil society organisations;
 Lack of actions in the National Strategy on Intellectual Property until 2020 dedicated to
NGOs;
 Civil society organizations disinterest towards phenomena of counterfeiting and piracy,
its non-interference in combating this issue;
 Lack of dedicated NGO platforms where IPR can be addressed and advocated.
5.4 Development needs
18
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Action plan on cooperation with NGO sector in fighting piracy and IPR advocacy campaigns;
Thematic seminars for national and local CSOs;
Involve NGOs in Project activities by inviting their members to participate at the rounds
tables, seminars and trainings;
Develop knowledge for concrete NGOs members and transfer the EU experience;
Update web-site on stop piracy and continuation of campaigns against piracy;
In the field of access to cultural heritage and copyright issues of libraries’ activity: to
organise seminars, trainings, debates on:
 EU experience on digitisation of cultural heritage,
 implementation of WIPO Marrakesh Treaty;
 introduction of modern copyright for libraries27;
 adjusting the copyright legislation of Moldova to EU modern acts: orphan works28;
Implementing the reform on librarian system aiming on transforming libraries in information centres, including in the field of Intellectual property29.Raise awareness about
the patent libraries and patent information at the national and local level.

5.5 Communication tools
 Outreach key messages of NGO representatives on IP protection and enforcement
through radio and TV broadcasts, press conferences;
 Publication of interesting facts in the field of IP useful for NGO sector;
 Organization of contests, flash mobs events dedicated to IP promotion in partnership
with CSOs;
 Include and develop IP component at the National Youth Festival in Moldova, including
stands, promo materials on innovation and IPR, exhibitions and workshops etc.
 Develop a special module for NGOs on the online platform on Intellectual Property
issues;
 Workshop on the protection of orphan works and libraries with the participation of foreign experts.
6. Universities. IPR Education
6.1 General characteristics
To increase the IP culture in Moldova, AGEPI in partnership with Ministry of Education are
advocating for the introducing in the curricula at various levels of training, disciplines related
to intellectual property. Currently, in the curricula of several universities are disciplines related
to intellectual property: IP Law (in 12 institutions), Innovative Management (8) Marketing of
New Products (3), Economics of IP (3) IP Protection (1), IP Assessment (1).30
6.2 IPR support provided

27

Interview with Ms Mariana Harjevschi, Director of Hasdeu Library, Chisinau. March 17, 2017.
Idem.
29
Monitoring report on the implementation of the Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation of the National
Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020, approved by the minister of Economy, Chairman of the National Commission on Intellectual Property, Octavian Calmic, May 2, 2017.
30
Ministry of Education. www.edu.gov.md
28
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One of the objectives highlighted in the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020 is
training and education in the field of IP through the pre-graduate, undergraduate and postgraduate education system. For instance, at the Faculty of Physics there is an IPR course for 35
hours, 7 weeks.
AGEPI initiatives on introducing the optional disciplines “IP Protection” in the university
should be implemented in the coming years by university senates’ decisions with their extension
to pre-university education. This will have a beneficial effect on the processes of creation, protection and enforcement of IP rights in the Republic of Moldova
6.3 Main gaps
 Low IP level of knowledge of students
 Lack of IP disciplines in the national education system with content adapted to each
level: pre-graduate, vocational, undergraduate and postgraduate;
 Lack of introduction course in IP (20/24h) for students of all specialties;
 Complexities with teaching courses for lawyers and management of IPR. In particularly:
lack of mandatory IPR course at State University from Moldova for Law students what
can lead to reducing or even lack of students in this field; removing of specialty Intellectual property management - from the nomenclature of specialties at the Academy of
Economic Studies (ASEM);
 The need to provide specialised IP courses on invention activity and patenting of invention for students in the field of natural and technical specialities;
 No modern academic schoolbook on IPR for students;
 Lack of modern textbooks on invention activity and patenting for students from technical and natural sciences departments of the universities as well textbook on management of intellectual property;
6.4 Development needs
 Develop a modern programs for teaching IPR:
 model programme for “Introductory course” on IP for students of all the universities;
 model programme on IP on invention activity and patenting of invention for students of natural and technical specialities;
 model programme on IP for the Law students;
 model programme on management of intellectual property;
 Training of teachers from institutions involved in holding lectures on intellectual property;
 Develop and publish:
 modern academic schoolbook on IPR for students;
 modern schoolbook on invention activity and patenting for students from technical and natural sciences departments of the universities;
 modern schoolbook on management of intellectual property;
 other teaching materials
6.5 Communication tools
 Modern model programs for teaching IPR published on the online special platform on
IPR;
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Modern and updated academic schoolbook on IPR for students as well as schoolbooks
on invention activity and patenting for students from technical and natural sciences departments of the universities and on management of IP published with digital textbooks version distribution;
Organization of round tables with university lectures to discuss the approaches in
teaching IPR in universities.

7. Academia. IPR creation, protection and commercialisation
7.1. General characteristics
7.1.1. Research institutions
In the Republic of Moldova, the Academy of Sciences comprises almost all the organizations
that contribute to the scientific and innovation activity: such as: research universities, organizations in the field of science and innovation, business incubators, innovation parks (scientific,
technical-scientific and technological), enterprises and other specialized organizations.
Also, under the Academy there is a special institution Agency for Innovation and Technology
Transfer (AITT) with the competence to coordinate, stimulate and implement the mechanisms
of innovation activity and technology transfer.31
Besides, there are research institutes which operate under the relevant ministries, these institutes
which contribute to the creation, protection and exploitation of IP. For instance under the Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry we can list following institutes: Institute of Pedology
and Agro-chemistry „N. Dimo”, Institute of Plant Industry „Porumbeni”, Scientific and Practical Institute of Biotechnologies in Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Medicine, Research Institute for Field Crops “Selection” etc.
7.1.2. Universities
The leading Universities in promoting IP objects creation and commercialisation are: Technical
University of Moldova, State University of Moldova, Academy of Economic Studies of Moldova and State Medical and Pharmaceutical University „Nicolae Testemitanu”.
For example, State University of Medicine and Pharmacy “Nicolae Testimiteanu” created centers focused on patenting inventions and use of IP objects. At the Technical University of Moldova works the Innovation Incubators “Politehnica” and the University of the Academy of Sciences of Moldova designated the Educational Innovation Incubator “Universcience”.
The first places on top of most active institutions in patenting inventions are taken by: State
University of Moldova -25 applications filed and 20 patents issued; State University of Medicine and Pharmacy “N. Testemitanu”- 21 applications, 17 patents and Technical University of
Moldova (TUM) -19 applications, 14 patents.32
7.1.2 IPR support provided
Agency for Innovation and Technology Transfer (AITT) was created due to the Code on Science and Innovation of the Republic of Moldova. Since 2004, AITT implemented a number of
innovative projects. During its activity, AITT succeed to create 3 scientific-technological parks
(“Academica”, “Inagro” and “Micronanoteh”) and an innovation incubator, in which currently
operate approximately 40 residents.
31
32

http://aitt.md
AGEPI Annual Report 2016.
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To enhance public awareness of the role of IP, AGEPI jointly with Ministry of Culture, Ministry
of Education and Academy of Sciences organize once in two years International Specialized
Exhibition "INFOINVENT”. The exhibition gathers about 100 institutions in the field of sciences, high education institutions, inventors, and creative people from Moldova and abroad.
The event aims to promote and present new inventions and creative products with potential for
marketing to the general and specialized public.
As to universities - in the framework of the Tempus Project “Technological Transfer Network
(TecTNet)”, implemented in the Republic of Moldova by an EU-Moldova consortium composed of eleven partners (during 2014-2016), were set-up Technology Transfer Offices (OTT)
in Moldovan (MD) universities such as: Technical University, State University, Agrarian University, Alecu Russo State University of Bălți33.
7.1.3 Main gaps
 Lack of effective incentives for IPR commercialisation. The tax and customs benefits
for the science and technical parks provided by the Law on science and technical parks
and innovation incubators and tax and customs legislation in 2009 were abolished in
2012;
 Low level of funding of technology transfer projects;
 Lack of knowledge of researches and university specialists on how to commercialise
intellectual property products;
 Lack of knowledge on how to conclude agreements between research organisations and
enterprises at both national and international level
 Low level of the interest of companies for investing in innovations produced by universities and research institutions;
 Lack of linkages between the universities and business sector;
7.1.4 Development needs
 Trainings and seminars on:
 practice of EU research institutes, universities on technology transfer to companies:
ways, funding instruments and sharing best practices;
 practice of EU research institutes, universities on intellectual property management;
 better understanding how to conclude agreements with foreign firms;
 start-up creation; benefits of the intellectual property objects and data security described in patent applications;
 filling of the patent applications, patenting abroad and patent information;
 various aspects of the innovation and technology transfer process;
 Identify the demands and expectations of entrepreneurs from the research sector.
 Support in establishing connections with enterprises and by building new partnerships;
 Enhance the capacity of universities and companies to build partnerships for promoting
the innovation culture, creating incentives for a more competitive and innovative business environment;

33

http://www.tectnet.unisannio.it
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Organization of the technologically audit for innovative business.34

7.1.5 Communication tools
 Thematic training on management of intellectual property objects, commercialisation
of IP objects, technology transfer; patent information and patenting abroad;
 Continuing organization of exhibitions on intellectual property objects by involving
technology transfer projects promoted by the research institutes and others;
 Provide an on-line platform for exchange of information, experiences and knowledge
on the management of IP and technology transfer from the R&D sector to business;
 Developing content on IP for universities and companies on the AGEPI webpage.
 Update online platform of the ISE “INFOINVENT”, www.infoinvent.md with support
information oriented to the technology transfer projects
 Update and complete online Database “Scientific Results”, developed and managed by
AGEPI;
 Raise awareness about IP via publications like: the Journal “Intellectus” with 2 supplements “AGEPI-Expo” and “Echoes INFOINVENT”, dedicated to the results of each
edition of the International Specialized Exhibition “INFOINVENT”, the quarterly digest “AGEPI-INFO” and the Catalog of ISE “INFOINVENT-2015”;
 Promote gender equality in IP and innovation domains through the Women-Inventors
of the Republic of Moldova, Alphabetical Index (1994-2014);
 Organize working visits for Moldovan universities to companies with the aim to recruit
business-partners interested in technology transfer and further collaboration with universities.
8. People of the Republic of Moldova at large
8.1 General characteristics
According to the results of the 2014 Population and Housing Census, the population of the
Republic of Moldova at the time of the Census was 2,998,235. The same source of information
mentions that more than half of the population are the habitants from the rural area (61,8%). In
the urban area, live about 38,2%. The number of women continues to be higher. The distribution
of the population by gender is as follows: 48.2% were men, while 51.8% were women. The
analysis of the 0-14, 15-59 and 60 plus age groups showed that the demographic population
ageing is becoming more and more noticeable in Moldova. In 2014, the number of persons
older than 60 was 17.4%.35 The number of pupils was estimated about 18,4% and 25% for
youth (18-30 years old).
8.2 IPR support provided
In 2016, were realized several campaign and media event aimed to increase the understanding
and promotion of IP. Stop Pirateria website, animation infographs explaining IPR and media
campaign on occasion of AGEPI 25th anniversary, Open Doors Days, innovative exhibition
and other actions managed to raise awareness among general public.

34

Monitoring report on the implementation of the Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation of the National
Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020, May 2, 2017.
35
http://www.statistica.md/newsview.php?l=ro&idc=168&id=5626
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Also, in 2016 AGEPI created a modern Consultancy Center (Call Center), which aims to facilitate applicants’ access to information, as well as to improve the quality of services provided
by the Agency.
One of the key functions and attributions of AGEPI is related to the IP objects patenting and
registration activity.
During 2016, AGEPI issued 70 titles of protection for inventions (standard patent), 122 titles
for short-term patents, total 192, including 175 – patents for national owners and 17 for foreign.36
In 2016, 5,397 primary applications were filed with AGEPI (4,478 - for trademarks, 311 - for
inventions, 298 - for geographical indications and appellations of origin, 288 – for industrial
designs and 22 – for plant varieties) and 4,315 IPO protection renewal applications (3,983 - for
trademarks and 332 – for industrial designs)37. The IPO should contribute to the economic
growth, which will lead to the welfare of the entire population.
8.3 Main gaps
 Low level of familiarization of the Moldovan population with key notions on intellectual property. According to the study made by AGEPI in 2012 only 32.4% of respondents were able to provide an adequate definition of the intellectual property;
 Piracy is not perceived as a violation of IP rights through the use of unlicensed software;
 Rising rate of piracy in the so-called music industry;
 The use of unlicensed software caused primarily by population poverty, but also by the
low degree information on IPR issues 38;
 Gap between the IPO patenting/registration activity of the applicants from Chisinau and
other localities etc.
8.4 Development needs
 Substantial need in informing the population about the role of IP for increasing business
competitiveness, economic, social and cultural development of the country;
 Involve public and private sector, civil society and the media in tailored media campaigns promoting preventive actions to fight against counterfeiting;
 Raising awareness on the value of intellectual property and preventive actions to fight
counterfeiting particularly among local communities by involving Regional Development Agencies as active leaders at regional and local level;
 Disseminate the video graphs realised by AGEPI on the IP key issues in order to raise
awareness and enhance the understanding of the IP right;
 Creation and development of the national network of IP regional/territorial centres;
 Disseminate information on counterfeiting products in the market places such as Piata
Centrala, Piata Basarabiei and markets in rayons etc.
8.5 Communication tools
 Organize national campaigns to combat counterfeiting and piracy phenomena;
 Organize contests on occasion of celebrating special days such as: World Intellectual
Property Day, World Book and Copyright Day, World Anti-Counterfeiting Day;
36

AGEPI Annual Report 2016.
Idem
38
Study Report ”Knowledge, attitudes and practices of the Moldovan population with regard to Intellectual
Property” as a component of the Public Awareness Campaign "STOP Counterfeiting and Piracy!", initiated by
AGEPI on April 26, 2012.
37
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Organize event for youth generation (Flash mobs, debates, innovative exhibitions, Open
Days etc.);
Organize various thematic competitions;
Participate at the TV, radio and Online shows (Replica/ Prime TV, In Profunzime/Pro
TV, Alb&Negru/ Unimedia.md, Cod Galben/10 TV, Spatiul Public/Radio Moldova,
Buna Seara. TV Moldova 1 etc.);
Organize live chats on social media etc.

9. Pupils from schools
9.1 General characteristics
At the beginning of the study year from 2015 to 2016 in the Republic of Moldova, were about
2899 active educational institutions with a total of nr 610437 children, pupils and students including: 1453 of early education institutions (as for 01.01.2015) where studied 147733 children,
1323 of primary and secondary general education institutions in which studies about 334 509
pupils, 47 of them secondary vocational technical education institutions where the number of
pupils was 16098, 45 institutions post-secondary technical vocational education- 30,428 pupils
and 31 educational institutions with more than 81,669 students.39
9.2 IPR support provided
To address the issues of pirated products in Moldova, AGEPI hold a targeted national campaign
on fighting piracy for pupils of lyceums (9-12 classes) in 2014. The website www.stoppirateria.md, managed by AGEPI, recorded 12,238 hits, including 4,331 unique visitors, providing relevant information on IPR infringement cases and activities carried out by public authorities with responsibilities for the enforcement of IPR.40
The continuation of that campaign is envisaged in 2017.
To promote knowledge in the field of IP among pupils in the educational institutions of the
Republic of Moldova, recently the Ministry of Education approved the optional discipline "Introduction to Intellectual Property" dedicated to youth aged between 15- 18 years old, with a
total of 34 hours per year. In this respect, in August, 2017, AGEPI will provide 5 days training
(30 academic hours) for teachers on theoretical and practical aspects of intellectual property,
the role of innovation in economic, social and cultural development and continuing efforts on
fighting piracy for pupils41.
Also, AGEPI in partnership with the Ministry of Education of the Republic of Moldova, the
Romanian State Office for Inventions and Trademarks (OSIM) and the Romanian Office for
Copyright (ORDA) organize a contest for pupils of lyceums. The aim is to promote the intellectual property system and create a communication environment among youth interested in

39

Ministry of Education, www.edu.gov.md
AGEPI Annual Report 2015.
41
Profesorii din licee vor fi instruiți în domeniul proprietății intelectuale. AGEPI, 08.06.2017.
http://agepi.gov.md/ro/news/profesorii-din-licee-vor-fi-instrui%C8%9Bi-%C3%AEn-domeniul-propriet%C4%83%C8%9Bii-intelectuale
40
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intellectual property, by encouraging the exchange of opinions and experience between peers,
developing skills and raising awareness on counterfeiting and piracy phenomena42.
9.3 Main gaps
 Lack of basis knowledge on IPR;
 Digital piracy is becoming more pervasive among pupils (music, game and movie piracy);
 The using a peer-to-peer network to upload or download music is constantly growing43.
9.4 Development needs
 Promote the creativity by supporting research and innovation activity among children
and pupils;
 Develop relevant information on IPR infringement cases and activities carried out by
public authorities with responsibilities for the enforcement of IP rights;
 Develop and publish educational and promotional IP materials for pupils and students;
 Develop and implement the curriculum for the optional training course for pupils on
intellectual property "Introduction to Intellectual Property", currently approved by the
Government;
 Assess how useful are the optional discipline "Introduction to Intellectual Property" for
pupils from Moldova;
 Training seminar for teachers from institutions involved in teaching courses on IP.
9.5 Communication tools
 Develop and distribute promo materials in IP field;
 Organize an open Day dedicated to Intellectual Property in universities and schools on
negative impact of counterfeiting and piracy phenomena;
 Design and dissemination of communication tools on Stop Pirateria campaign (brochures, factsheets, t-shirts, pens, handbags, notebooks with the campaign key messages
and website);
 Update the webpage “Stop piracy” www.stoppirateria.md with pupils testimonies on
Stop Pirateria campaign;
 Organization of an ambulance exhibition of a counterfeit products within schools;
 Organize a social media campaign dedicated to mobilise pupils to identify the most
counterfeit products in daily life;
 Flyers, strikers and posters with Stop Pirateria logo and campaign key message/ slogan.
10. Young people (including students)
10.1 General characteristics
According to the last census (2014) in Moldova 25% of the population is represented by youth
(19-29 years).
10.2 IPR support provided

Concurs pentru tineri în domeniul proprietății intelectuale, AGEPI, 31.05.2017.
http://agepi.gov.md/ro/news/concurs-pentru-tineri-%C3%AEn-domeniul-propriet%C4%83%C8%9Bii-intelectuale
43
www.stoppirateria.md
42
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AGEPI supported and promoted the creativity and innovation among youth by organizing together with education institutions and partners from private sector several thematic contests
(“Digital Creativity. Culture Reimagined”, “What is Intellectual Property Associated With?”,
“Online Game in the Field of Intellectual Property”, “Tourism and Respect for Intellectual
Property”. Also, AGEPI was an organizer, co-organizer or partner in organizing a series of
promotional events (“Best Innovative Pupil” and “Trademark of the Year”, Contest “Student
Today, Entrepreneur Tomorrow”, National Sciences and Engineering Competition “Mold
SEF”, Business Ideas Gala, Creative Entrepreneurship Gala and “Creative Business Cup” Competition GEN Moldova, exhibition of engineering works “Creation Opens the Universe”, contest “Public library - Partnering Promoting IP”) etc.
10.3 Main gaps
 Lack of awareness campaign and tailored messages on IP targeting young people;
 Lack of youth leaders, bloggers who advocating for IP;
 Lack of modern schoolbooks on IPR , including academic textbook on IP for students;
10.4 Development needs
 Development and publishing of the educational materials (guides) and information on
intellectual property for teachers and students from educational institutions of the country;
 Develop e-leaning programs for youth generation;
 Developing and organising different contests and other forms of competitions among
student to stimulate creativity and innovation, including youth entrepreneurship;
 Various competitions for youth during thematic international days;
 Develop and organise contests and competitions among student to stimulate creativity
and innovation, including youth entrepreneurship;
 Conducting awareness raising actions for youth such as: lectures, seminars, round tables
on the negative impact of counterfeiting and piracy on the economic and cultural development of the country;
 Identify spokespersons/ youth ambassadors of IPR in Moldova and outreach their supporting messages.
10.5 Communication tools
 Thematic conferences;
 Networking events;
 Public lecture in universities;
 Virtual Libraries;
 Online applications for electronic devises (Iphone or Android);
 Brochures and posters distributed in universities;
 Documentaries (max.10 minutes) broadcasted at the TV channels with national coverage (Moldova 1 and Prime);
 Off-lines with key opinion leaders and bloggers from Moldova.
 Organize the “European Researchers’ Night” ;
 Conducting awareness raising actions among the young generation (campaigns, lectures, seminars, round tables), including high schools in different regions of the country,
on the negative impact of counterfeiting and piracy on economic and cultural development of the country and population health.
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11. Media institutions
11.1 General characteristics
In Moldova, due to the economic crisis and increased staff fluctuation rate in media environment, there are not a concrete and updated number of media institutions. On 1 January 2015,
were registered 218 audio-visual licenses, 72 of them TV and 58 radio services. Centre for
Independent Journalism, Center for Journalistic Investigations, Center for Young Journalism
and the Electronic Press Association from Moldova are the key organizations in the media associative sector.
The leading media with national coverage are: Prime TV, Moldova 1, Pro TV, Radio Moldova,
Radio Plai, Radio Noroc, Agro TV, www.diez.md, unimedia.md, newsmaker.md, realitatea.md,
Timpul newspaper, Ziarul de garda, Ziarul National, Adevarul, Economicheskoe Obosrenyie,
etc. At the local level there is a network of local TV channels (Aici TV) and a NGO guiding
and supporting all local media from all over the country - the Association of Independent Press.
11.2 IPR support provided
By increased number of annual events, AGEPI succeeded to develop strong relations with media representatives. In 2016, AGEPI organized training for 20 journalists on intellectual property in order to enhance their knowledge and understanding of key issues in the IP field.
11.3 Main gaps
 Reduced number of skilled and trained journalists in the field of IPR;
 News and articles focused on the process, not on results or how it may change people
life;
 The covered topics on IPR in media are focused more on the AGEPI activity and its
results and not on the issues matter;
 Lack of opinion leaders on IP rights among editors;
 Complicated terminology.
11.4 Development needs
 Training courses for journalists working in the IP field, with the participation of AGEPI
specialists and competent institutions in the field, inviting international experts;
 Building network of journalists and bloggers who are cover the IP and GI issues;
 Organizing the contest of journalists for the best exposure of issues related to the development of scientific-technical, innovation and rationalization activity in the country and
dissemination of information in the IP field;
 Improvements in preparation basic information materials on topical IP issues for journalists.
11.5 Communication tools
 Online newsletter dedicated to media with the possibility to subscribe;
 Press releases;
 Glossary of technical terms;
 Letters to editors;
 Info briefs on IPR;
 Fact sheets;
 Top of key issues;
 Success stories;
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Interactive presentations, online maps, applications, infogarphs etc.;
Interviews for print media with relevant and respected personalities in the field of IP;
Op-eds for key online media;
Online banners.
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2. Monitoring report on the implementation of the Action Plan for 2015-2017 on implementation of the National Intellectual Property Strategy until 2020, approved by the
minister of Economy, Chairman of the National Commission on Intellectual Property,
Octavian Calmic, May 2, 2017, available on agepi.gov.md.
3. Progress report on the implementation of the Republic of Moldova – European Union
Association agenda (September 2014 – March 2016), available on www.mfa.gov.md.
4. National Report on the Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights in the Republic of
Moldova, 2015, available on www.stoppirateria.md.
5. Project proposal, Support to Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights, Project No.
EropeAid/137467/DH/SER/MD.
6. Gap Analysis "Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) protection and enforcement in Moldova", EU Project “Support to Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights”, January
2017.
7. Communication Plan of the Results of the Chisinau Pupil Awareness Campaign on
Counterfeiting and Piracy Phenomena, available on www.stoppirateria.md.
8. Results of the Chisinau Pupil Awareness Campaign on Counterfeiting and Piracy Phenomena, available on www.stoppirateria.md.
9. Study Report ”Knowledge, attitudes and practices of the Moldovan population with regard to Intellectual Property”, component of the Public Awareness Campaign "STOP
Counterfeiting and Piracy!", initiated by AGEPI on April 26, 2012.
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10. The Economic Performance of Copyright-Based Industries, Moldova Report, 2015,
http://www.wipo.int/export/sites/www/copyright/en/performance/pdf/econ_contribution_cr_md.pdf.
11. Validation of European patents in the Republic of Moldova, Official Journal of the European Patent Office, August 2016, available on http://www.epo.org/law-practice/legaltexts/official-journal/2016/08/a67.html.
Web sites
1. http://aitt.md
2. www.agepi.gov.md
3. www.edu.gov.md
4. http://www.epo.org/law-practice/legal-texts/official-journal/2016/08/a67.html
5. www.statistica.md/
6. www.stoppirateria.md
7. http://www.tectnet.unisannio.it
Others
1. Classification of Activities in the Moldovan Economy- CAEM, 2014, available on
www.statistica.md.
2. Power Point Presentations “Transparency, accountability and good governance in collective management”, Eugeniu Rusu, AGEPI, March 3, 2017, Regional Workshop on
Copyright and Collective Management (2 -3 March, 2017), Kiev, Ukraine, available
online.
3. Evaluation Report on the Project on Improvement of National, Sub-Regional and Regional IP Institutional and User Capacity (2009-2011), available online:
http://www.wipo.int/meetings/en/doc_details.jsp?doc_id=219342.
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Annex 2
List of organisations and groups
to cooperate when delivering the Programme of Cultural Change
No
1.1.

1.1.1.

1.1.2.

1.1.3.
1.1.4.

1.1.5.

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

Organisations and groups
Contacts
Government institutions involved in IPR protection and enforcement
State Agency on Intellectual Prop- www.agepi.gov.md
erty (AGEPI)
(+373-22) 400500
office@agepi.gov.md
Ministry of Internal Affairs and
www.mai.gov.md
Police Department
secretariat@mai.gov.md
mai@mai.gov.md
(022) 225-333
General Prosecutors Office
http://www.procuratura.md
(373 22) 225 075
Agency for Consumer Protection
www.consumator.gov.md
tel: +373 22 501 980
e-mail: info@apc.gov.md
Ministry of Justice
www.justice.gov.md
Tel: +373 22 23 33 40
E-mail: secretariat@justice.gov.md
Competent authorities empowered with attributions and responsibilities related to the
products with appellations of
origin, geographical indications
and traditional specialties guaranteed
Ministry of Agriculture and Food
www.maia.gov.md
Industry
tel.: +373 22 210 409
adm_maia@maia.gov.md
Dumitru Bratco
E-mail: dumitru.bratco@maia.gov.md ;
dbratco@gmail.com; Skype: bratco_56.
Tel: +373(22)210-192; Fax:
+373(22)210192; GSM (373) 693 90091
Ministry of Regional Developwww.mdrc.gov.md
ment and Constructions
tel. (+373 22) 20-45-81
E-mail: mdrc@mdrc.gov.md
Ministry of Culture
www.mc.gov.md
tel.: +373 (0) 23 35 60
e-mail: mc@mc.gov.md
Ministry of Environment
www.mediu.gov.md
tel.: +373 22 20-45-07
secretariat@mediu.gov.md
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1.2.5

Ministry of Health

1.3

Competent authorities responsible of official controls on the
conformity of the products
General Inspectorate for Phytosanitary Surveillance and Seed Control
Center of Wine and Food Technology under the Practical Scientific Institute of Horticulture and
Food Technology
Sanitary Veterinary Agency for
Safety of Products of Animal
Origin
Inspectorate for Alcoholic Production Supervision under the Ministry of Agriculture and Food Industry
State Enterprise „National Center
of Alcoholic Beverages Testing”

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.3.6

1.3.7

1.3.8

State Public Health Surveillance
Service

1.3.9

State Construction Inspection Service

1.3.10

Agency of Geology and Mineral
Resources

1.3.11

Medicine Agency

2.
2.1.

Courts, judges dealing with IP
cases
Supreme Court of Justice

2.2.

Chisinau Court of Appeal

2.3.

National Institute of Justice

3.

IPR organisations

www.ms.gov.md
tel.: + 373 22 268 885
office@ms.gov.md

www.acsa.md
Tel.: (373 22) 23-53-54
E-mail: office@acsa.md
www.agriculture.cia.md
Tel. (373-22) 24 24 91
Tel.(373-22)28 54 31
Email: Pomicer@rambler.ru
www.ansa.gov.md
tel/fax. +373-22-294730
email: info@ansa.gov.md
www.maia.gov.md
tel.: +373 22 210 409
adm_maia@maia.gov.md
www.cnvcpa.md
Tel: (+373 22) 28-59-59
E-mail: cnvcpa@gmail.com
www.ms.gov.md
tel.: + 373 22 268 885
office@ms.gov.md
www.isc.gov.md
Tel. (+373 22) 23-80-24
isc@isc.gov.md
www.agrm.gov.md
Tel.: (373 22) 750 656
Email: agrm@agrm.gov.md
www.amed.md
tel. (+373 22) 88-43-01
e-mail: office@amed.md

www.csj.md
tel: +373 22 221 547
Email: info@csj.md
www.cac.instante.justice.md
Tel.: (022) 40-92-10
e-mail: cac@justice.md
www.inj.md
tel/fax: +373 22 232755
e-mail: inj@inj.gov.md
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3.1.

Association of Patent Attorneys

3.2

Collective Management Organisations of Copyright and Related Rights
National Association “Copyright”(ANCO)
Republican Copyright Office
(ORDA)

3.2.1
3.2.2

4

Sectors of the economy that create intellectual property

4.1

Moldova Investment and Export
Promotion Organization (MIEPO)

4.2

Moldovan National Association of
the ICT Companies
Trade Chamber, Organization for
Small and Medium Enterprises
Sector Development (ODIMM)
Chamber of Commerce and Industry

4.3

4.4

5
5.1

5.2

Civil Society Organisations
(CSOs)
National Platform of the Eastern
Partnership Civil Society Forum
“Pentru Europa/ Pro Europe”
National Platform of Libraries
“Novateca”

6
6.1

Universities. IPR Education
Faculty of Law, Moldova State
University

6.2

Faculty of Physics, Moldova State
University

6.3

Academy of Economic Studies
(ASEM)

6.4

Technical University of Moldova

+373 22 237 722
copyright@mail.md
www.orda.md
info@orda.md
tel.: +373 22 222 909

www.miepo.md
Tel:+373 22 27 36 54
e-mail: office@miepo.md
www.ict.md
Tel/Fax: 373 22 887001
Tel : + 373 (22) 29 57 41
Email: office@odimm.md
www.chamber.md
Tel.: + 373 22 / 22 15 52
e-mail: camera@chamber.md

Tel.: + 373 22 241 771
E-mail: proeurope.platform@gmail.com
www.novateca.md
Tel. +373 22 22 29 92
Fax. +373 22 22 88 39
Email: office@novateca.md
www.drept.usm.md
Tel.: + 373 22 57 78 01
Ms Tatiana Bodiul, tel. 069-149-396, email: bodiulco@gmail.com
www.phys.usm.md
Tel.: +373 (002) 57-75-79
Email: nicorici@usm.md, dmitrogloliliana@yahoo.com
www.ase.md
Tel.: +373 (002) 22-41-28
Email: anticamera@ase.md
www.utm.md
Valeriu Dulgheru
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6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

7
7.1

7.2

7.3.
7.3.1.

7.3.2.

Tel: 022 509939, e-mail:
dulgheru@mail.utm.md
University of European Studies of www.usem.md
Moldova (USEM), Faculty of Law Phone: +373 22 509 122
Email: info@usem.md
Free International University of
www.ulim.md
Moldova, Faculty of Law
Tel.: (+373 22) 220029; Fax.: (+373 22)
220028;
E-mail: office@ulim.md, ulim@ulim.md
International Institute of Manage- www.imi-nova.md
ment of Moldova IMI-NOVA
tel.: 022 56-82-09
e-mail: info@imi-nova.md,
valentin_iminova@yahoo.com
Trade Co-operative University of
www.uccm.md
Moldova (TCUM)
Phone: (+ 373 22) 815-602
fax (+ 373 22) 270-203
Email: interuccm@uccm.md
Alecu Russo State University of
www.usarb.md
Bălți
Ion Gagim
tel.: +373 231 52340
e-mail: rector@usarb.md, anticamera@usarb.md
Agrarian University of Moldova
www.uasm.md
Phone: +373 22 312258
email:info@uasm.md
State University “Bogdan Pewww.usch.md
triceicu Hasdeu” Cahul
Phone: +(373-299) 2-24-81
Fax: +(373-299) 2-47-52
E-mail: rectorat@usch.md
University of the Academy of Sci- www.edu.asm.md
ences of Moldova (UnASM)
Phone: (+373-22) 738016
E-mail: personal.univer@asm.md
Academia. IPR creation, protection and commercialization
Academy of Sciences
www.asm.md
Tel.: (+373-22) 27-14-78
E-mail: consiliu@asm.md
Agency for Innovation and Techwww.aitt.md
nology Transfer (AITT)
Vadim Iatchevici,
tel.068115110, tel. 022882569,
Email: vadim.iatchevici@gmail.com
Universities with IP offices
Technical University of Moldova
www.utm.md
Valeriu Dulgheru
Tel: 022 509939, e-mail:
dulgheru@mail.utm.md
State University of Medicine and
www.usmf.md
Pharmacy “Nicolae Testimiteanu” Tel.: (+373) 22 243 408
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7.3.3.

Agrarian University

7.3.4.

Alecu Russo State University of
Bălți

University of the Academy of Sciences of Moldova (UnASM)
7.4.
7.7

Other research organisations
Institute of Pedology and Agrochemistry „N. Dimo”

7.8

Institute of Plant Industry
„Porumbeni”

Scientific and Practical Institute of
Biotechnologies in Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Medicine

Research Institute for Field Crops
“Selection”
Institute of Agricultural Engineering "Mecagro"

8

Pupils from schools

8.1

National Council of Pupils under
the Ministry of Education

9

Young people

Fax: (+373) 22 242 344
Email: contact@usmf.md
Nicolae Starciuc
Tel/fax:+(373 22) 31-22-07
E-mail: n.starciuc@uasm.md
www.usarb.md
Ion Gagim
tel.: +373 231 52340
e-mail: rector@usarb.md, anticamera@usarb.md
www.edu.asm.md
Phone: (+373-22) 738016
E-mail: personal.univer@asm.md
www.ipaps.md
Iurie Moşoi, dr.conf.
tel. : (+373) 22 28 - 48 - 58
fax : (+737) 22 28 - 48 - 59
e-mail: ipaps_dimo@mtc.md
Vasile Pojoga Vasile, dr.
Phone (+373 0231) 33151;
Fax
(+373 0231) 30221;
E-mail:selectia60@beltsy.md;
ifporumbeni@rambler.ru
Web: http://www.agriculture.md/fito/index.html
www.e-agriculture.md
Mașner Oleg, dr., Director executive
Tel: +373 22 359350, e-mail: mashneroleg@yandex.ru

http://agriculture.cia.md
Tel.: 0231 3-31-51;
E-mail: selectia3@gmail.com
www.agriculture.md
http://mecagro.md
te.: 022-49-79-24; 022-49-21-31
Executive Director
Sergiu Stratan

www.edu.gov.md
Email: asistentministru@edu.md
Tel.: +373 022-234609
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9.1

National Youth Council of Moldova

9.2

Aisec Moldova

9.3

Students' Alliance of Moldova

10

International Organizations

10.2

EUBAM Mission in Moldova

10.3

UNDP Moldova

10.4

USAID Moldova

11
11.1

Leading media partners44
TV

11.2
11.3

Radio
Newspapers

11.4

Websites

www.cntm.md
+373 22 235 175
Email: cntm.corespondenta@gmail.com
www.aisec.md
Tel.:0607 92 312
Email: aiesec.chisinau@aiesec.net
www.aliantastudentilor.md
Email: office@aliantastudentilor.md

Irina Privantu, Customs & Communications Expert
Mobile: +373 68123023
Email: irina.privantu@eubam.org
www.eubam.org
www.md.undp.org
Laura Bohantova, Communications Analyst
Phone: (+373 22) 269 112, 0685 11 883
Email: aura.bohantova@undp.org
www.usaid.gov
Phone 373-22-20-18-00
Fax 373-22-23-72-77
Email: tgillis@usaid.gov
Moldova1, Prime, Pro TV, AGRO TV,
Publika TV, Jurnal TV, 10TV
Radio Moldova, Radio Plai, Radio Noroc
Ziarul de Garda, Adevarul, Timpul,
Ziarul National, Logos press (Economicheskoe Obozrenye)
Agora.md, diez.md, unimedia.md, newsmaker.md, realitatea.md

44

These are key media institutions in Moldova with a wide coverage, for specific campaigns their number could
be bigger.
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